United Nations

GENERAL
ASSEMBLY

SEVENTEENTH SESSION
Official Records

FIRST COMMITTEE, 1283rd

MEETING

Wednesday, 21 November 1962,
at 10.30 a.m.

NEW YORK

CONTENTS
Page
Order of discussion of agenda items (continued) 193

Point of order raised by the USSR representative
concerning agenda item 93 . .. .......... 196

Chairman: Mr, Omar Abdel Hamid ADEEL
(Sudan).

Order of discussion of agenda items (A/C.1/868 and Add.1)

{continued)

1. The CHAIRMAN recalled that at the 1245th meeting
of the Committee, held on 5 October 1962, the Canadian
representative, supported by a number of other repre~
sentatives, had proposed that agenda item 27 (Interna=-
tional co~operation in the peaceful uses of outer space:
reports of the Committee onthe Peaceful Uses of Outer
Space, the World Meteorological Organization and the
International Telecommunication Union) should be con-
sidered as the fifth item onthe Committee's agenda and
that agenda item 28 (The Korean question: (a) Report of
the United Nations Commission for the Unification and
Rehabilitation of Korea; (b) The withdrawal of foreign
troops from South Korea) shouldbe the sixth item. The
Soviet representative, supported by a number of other
representatives, had proposed the opposite order of
priority for those two items.

2. Since his subsequent efforts to bring about an
agreement had been unsuccessful, he was bringing the
matter before the Committee once again. It was essen=
tial that a decision should be made now, so that the two
specialized agencies which wished to send observers
for the ddbate on outer space would have time to make
the necessary arrangements.

3. Mr. TREMBLAY (Canada) said that, although
neither of the items under consideration was of an ur-
gent nature, recent favourable developments in regard
to the peaceful uses of outer space seemed to afford
some prospect of constructive debate: the enlarged
Committee onthe Peaceful Uses of Outer Space had met
for the first time during the past year, decisions had
been taken with a view to the expansion of scientific co-
operation in outer space, there appeared to be agree-
ment on the question of drawing up legal principles to
govern the uses of outer space, and the Soviet Union and
the United States had reached agreement, in bilateral
negotiations, on co-operation in outer space.

4. On the other hand, there had been nonew develop-
ments which might change the character of the Commit-
tee's debate on the Korean item; although it had been
contended that the question of the withdrawal of foreign
troops from South Korea represented a new aspect of
the problem, it had in fact been dealt with at the pre=-
vious session in connexion with a draft resolution sub=

mitted by the Mongolian People's Republic (A/C.1/
£.302)./

5. His delegation therefore formally proposed that the
question of international co~operation in the peaceful
uses of outer space and the Koreanquestion should be,
respectively, the fifth and sixth items on the Commit~-
tee's agenda.

6. Mr. MOROZOV (Union of Soviet Socialist Repub=-
lics) said that the Committee had postponed its decision
on the order of priority of the two items in question not
because it considered neither of them urgent but be-
cause many delegations had felt that a compromise
solution might be reached after consultation. The ques-
tion of international co-operation in the peaceful uses of
outer space had been thoroughly discussed, before the
opening of the seventeenth session of the General As-
sembly, at a meeting of the Committee on the Peace-
ful Uses of Outer Space, While his delegation attached
great importance to that problem, it should be noted
that the technical section of the report of that Commit-
tee (A/5181) had been carefully prepared and would
therefore require little discussion by the First Com-
mittee, At the same time, since the Committee on the
Peaceful Uses of Outer Space had reached a stalemate
with regard to the legal aspects of the problem, it was
desirable that that section of the report should be taken
up first in informal consultations, witha view to reach-
ing some sort of agreement before the formal debate
in the First Committee,

7. Contrary to what the Canadian representative had
said, the Korean question was an extremely urgent one,
and its consideration should not be put off until the
very end of the session. The withdrawal of foreign
troops from South Korea would not only strengthen
peace in that part of the worldbut also promote the re-
unification of Korea on a peaceful, democratic basis.
Nine years after the end of the Korean War, South
Korea continued to be occupied by foreign troops in vio-
lation of the armistice agreement and was the site of
military bases situated not far from borders of the
Democratic People's Republic of Korea, the People's
Republic of China and the USSR. The people of South
Korea were labouring not only under the burden im=-
posed on them by the foreign troopsbut also under the
dictatorial régime supported by those troops.

8. The Canadian representative had stated that the
question of the withdrawal of foreign troops from South
Korea had been discussed at the previous session in
connexion with a draft resolution submitted by Mon-
golia. In fact, however, any real discussion -of the
matter had been prevented by a series of procedural
manoeuvres, and it was the First Committee's duty to
ensure that such a discussion was held now. The pro-
cedural manoeuvres in which the Canadian delegation
was now engaged had a definite political purpose; they

Y Official Records of the General Assembly, Sixteenth Session, An-
nexes, agenda item 20,

A/C.1/SR.1283



194 General Assembly — Seventeenth Session — First Committee

were designed toblock discussion of the question by the
General Assembly, and thus prolong the foreignoccu-
pation of South Korea and prevent a peaceful settlement
of the Korean question. He therefore formally moved
that the Canadian proposal should be amended to pro-
vide that the Korean question and the question of inter-
national co=-operation in the peaceful uses of outer
space should be the fifth and sixth items, respectively,
on the Committee's agenda.

9. He now wished to turn to an important matter—the
question of inviting representatives of the Democratic
People's Republic of Korea to participate in the discus=-
sion of the question of withdrawing foreigntroops from
South Korea=which, in the view of his delegation, must
be decided without delay, regardless of the decisionon
the order of priority. It was obvious that the presence
of a large foreign army along its frontiers posed a
constant threat to the security of the Democratic
People's Republic of Korea, and that without the par-
ticipation of its representatives the problems relating
to a peaceful settlement in Korea could not be solved.
It was essential that the matter shouldbe decided now,
so that the Democratic People's Republic of Korea
could make the necessary arrangements. It could be
decided without extended discussion, for the issues in=
volved had been thoroughly aired at the sixteenth
session of the Assembly. He therefore moved that the
Committee should give immediate consideration tohis
delegation's draft resolution (A/C.1/L.318), under
which invitations would be extendedto representatives
of both the Democratic People's Republic of Korea and
the so=-called Republic of Korea, He wished to empha=
size in that connexion that the invitation to the Demo-
cratic People's Republic should not be made subjectto
unacceptable conditions, as it had in past years.

10, Mr. ANUMAN RAJADHON (Thailand) said that the
question of international co~operation in the peaceful
uses of outer space was more urgent than the Korean
question. The extremely rapid advances made in space
exploration during the past five yearshadtransformed
men's outlook on the world, andtheir ideas on warfare,
and there was reason to fear thatunless an agreement
was reached on international co-operation, the arms
race might soon spread to outer space; thusthe ques=
tion of outer space was closely linked to that of dis=-
armament. Even if the situation in Korea could at any
time raise a serious threat to peace and security, as
some representatives had asserted, that threat would
be far greater if outer space was not barred to non-
peaceful uses, Moreover, the regulation of the use of
outer space was made more urgent by the constantly
increasing numbers of spacecraft in orbit, with the
consequent possibility of strained relations among the
States launching them.

11, His delegation wished to make it clear that it was
not suggesting that the Committee should refrain from
discussing the Korean item;the matter was merely one
of priorities.

12, Mr. BELAUNDE (Peru) said that he had not aban=-
doned the view he had put forward earlier in the ses-
sion, that priority should be given to the item on inter-
national co-operation in the peaceful uses of outer
space. The question of outer space was an essential as-
pect of the disarmament problem, and it was unthink-
able that the First Committee should fail to give the
Geneva negotiators guidance onthe matter, particular-
ly when it had spent so muchtime on nuclear tests and
other aspects of the work of the Eighteen-Nation Com~
mittee. Though there wasno reference to disarmament

in the title of the item, the United Nations was obviously
concerned with outer space as it affected international
peace and security. In previous debates on the subject
it had repeatedly been stressed that while space ex-
ploration offered a welcome opportunity for interna-
tional co~operation, the fact thatno rules of law had yet
been formulated to govern outer space or the activities
of States in it raised grave dangers. One motive for
exploring space was the illusory hope of developing a
decisive weapon; there had been talk of the advantage
which might be gained by orbiting a space platform,
and of the greater accuracy that could be achieved if
nuclear weapons were carried in satellites. The ques-
tion of outer space, therefore, like that of nuclear tests,
was of the utmost urgency, for the survival of the
human race was directly involved.

13. The Korean question, on the other hand, was not
urgent, It was important, as were all the items on the
agenda, and it bore a general relation to the problem
of maintaining peace. Peru naturally believed that
Korea should be reunified and freed from foreign in=-
terference. But the armistice was still being observed,
and the United Nations was represented in Korea by
United States forces. The situation had not changed in
any essential respect for alongtime. Thus there could
be no comparison between that question and a matter
which was of vital importance for the future of mankind.
When the Committee took up the question of outer
space, it would have to discuss the report of the Com=-
mittee on Peaceful Uses of Outer Space, whichhad two
main aspects, the scientific and the legal. It seemed
that the experts were agreed on the scientific aspect
of the question; on the legal aspect there would pre=-
sumably be a difference of views, but one which could
be expressed clearly and quickly. The whole debate,
therefore, need not take long, and there wouldbe plenty
of time left for the Korean question. There was no
justification for changing the order of items that had
first been proposed. The Soviet Union's reason for
proposing such a change, however respectable, was
merely political and could not outweigh more general
considerations.

14. Mr., HASEGANU (Romania) said that the fact that it
had proved impossible to reach agreement on the order
of priority in discussions outside the Committee
showed that the issue wasnot merely a procedural, but
basically a political one. The aim of the Canadian pro-
posal was merely to postpone the debate on the question
of the withdrawal of foreign troops from South Korea
for as long as possible. That question was extremely
important, since it involved the fate of millions of
people living under foreign military domination and
raised a threat to peace and security in the Far East.
It was high time for the Assembly tobreak the vicious
circle which resulted in such questions being carried
forward from one year to another without any progress.
The Romanian delegation considered that the Korean
question should be discussed immediately after dis=-
armament and it supportedthe Soviet proposal to invite
representatives of both the Democratic People's Re=~
public and South Korea to attend the debates, since no
success would be possible in a matter so vital to the
Koreans unless both sides were represented. The
reason why certain delegations were pursuing ob=-
structionist tactics was that their aim was not to
ensure peace and prosperity in Korea, but to main-
tain the military occupation of South Korea with the aid
of the dictatorship of General Park, in order to achieve
their own political and strategic ends. Invitations



1283rd meeting — 21 November 1962 195

should be sent to the representatives of the two sides
forthwith, so as to give them time to attend the debate.

15. Mr. LAMANI (Albania) said that while his delega=-
tion in no way minimized the importance of interna-
tional co=operation in outer space, it felt that the Com=-
mittee should consider the Korean question first be-
cause of the urgent need for the withdrawal of foreign
troops from South Korea andthe importance of resolv-
ing a dangerous situation in the Far East. In addition,
his delegation considered it essential that representa-
tives of the Democratic People's Republic of Korea
should take part in the Committee's discussions on the
Korean question.

16, Mr. DUGERSUREN (Mongolia) said that the pre-
sence of foreign troops in South Korea was preventing
the peaceful reunification of Korea. The situation could
endanger peace and security in Asia and the whole
world, and should therefore be considered more urgent
than the question of the uses of outer space., His dele-
gation supported the Soviet draft resolution (A/C.1/
L.318), by which representatives of the Democratic
People's Republic of Korea and those of the Republic of
Korea would be invited to attend during the Commit=-
tee's discussion of the Korean question.

17. The CHAIRMAN said that the situation had ob=-
viously not changed since the 1245th meeting. At that
meeting, he had expressed his own viewsbut had made
no ruling on the nature of the Soviet proposal that the
Korean question (agenda item 28) should be taken be=-
fore the question of the peaceful uses of outer space
(agenda item 27), He would leave the Committee to
decide whether it was an amendment to the Canadian
proposal within the meaning of rule 131 of the rules of
procedure of the General Assembly,

18. Mr. MOROZOV (Union of Soviet Socialist Repub=-
lics) said that he had been obliged to put forward his
proposal in the form of an amendment to the Canadian
proposal because the latter was not strictly speaking
a proposal at all. Inhis letter dated 24 September 1962
to the Chairman (A/C.1/868), the President of the
General Assembly had listed the items allocated to the
First Committee in a certain order. Normally anyone
who wished to change that order would have to submit
a proposal. Anyone who wished it to be adhered to, as
did the Canadian delegation, had no needto do so; thus
the Canadian proposal was entirely artificial, Since it
had been made, however, the Soviet delegation, wishing
to change the order of items given in the President's
letter, had had no alternative from the procedural
standpoint but to submit an amendment. A compromise
procedure would be to put the matter to the vote in such
a way that a vote in favour would be counted as a vote
in favour of changing the order given inthe President's
letter, and vice versa.

19. The CHAIRMAN said that the President's letter
had nothing to do with the question of priority, ‘it mere=-
ly listed the items allocated to the Committee. Under
rule 100 of the rules of procedure it was for the Com-
mittee to decide the order of priority. Since a formal
proposal on that subject had been placed before the
Committee by Canada, the Committee would have to
take a decision on it.

20. Mr. ROWAN (United States of America) said that
rule 131 of the rules of procedure clearly stated that a
motion was considered an amendment to a proposalif it
merely added to, deleted from or revised part of that
proposal, The purpose of the Soviet proposal was to re-

verse the Canadian proposal completely. It could not,
therefore, be regarded as an amendment.

21, The CHAIRMAN put to the vote the USSR motion
that its proposal should be regarded as an amendment
in accordance with rule 131 of the rules of procedure.

The motion was rejected by 54 votes to 11, with 25
abstentions,

22. The CHAIRMAN put to the vote the Canadian pro-
posal that item 27 of the General Assembly's agenda
(International co=~operation inthe peaceful uses of outer
space) should be taken as the fifth item on the Com=-
mittee's agenda.

The proposal was adopted by 52 votes to 13, with 30
abstentions.

23. The CHAIRMAN invited comment on the USSR
draft resolution (A/C.1/L.318) by which the Committee
would invite North and South Korean representatives to
participate, without vote, in the discussion of the
Korean question.

24, Mr. ROWAN (United States of America) said that
the Soviet draft resolution was a substantive one. To
discuss it immediately would in effect make the Korean
question the fifth item on the agenda, contrary to the
Committee's decision to give priority to the question of
outer space.

25, Mr. BINDZI (Cameroon) and Mr. CAMPBELL
(United Kingdom) associated themselves with the
United States representative's remarks.

26. Mr. QUAISON-SACKEY (Ghana), supported by Mr.
MOROZOV (Union of Soviet Socialist Republics), Mr.
TCHOBANOV (Bulgaria) and Mr. BLUSZ TAJN (Poland)
argued that the Soviet draft resolution was a procedural
one and could properly be discussed immediately; if the
Committee waited until it took up the Korean question,
it would be too late to invite the Korean representa=-
tives.,

27. Mr, BITSIOS (Greece) said it was clear from the
debates on the Korean question at previous sessions
that the Soviet draft resolution raised a matter of sub=
stance. In the past, the Committee had rejected the
proposal to invite North Korean representatives be=
cause of the content of the North Korean Government's
reply to its invitation, Circumstances might perhaps
have changed since then soas to justify a new invitation
to North Korean representatives; but that could notbe
decided without a substantive discussion.

28. Mr. TARAZI (Syria) urged the Committee to take
an immediate decision on the Soviet draft resolution,
which he regarded as procedural.

29. Mr. ARNAUD (France) agreed with the repre-
sentatives who had stressed the substantive nature of
the Soviet draft resolution. Moreover, he was sure that
the Korean representatives would not need much time
either for travelling or for preparing their material;
thus there was no need for the Committee to consider
the draft resolution at once.

30. Mr. CHANDERLI (Algeria), supporting the view
that the draft resolution was a procedural one, moved
the closure of the debate.

31. Mr. OKAZAKI (Japan), supported by Mr. ROWAN
(United States of America), opposed the motion for
closure, on the ground that representatives wouldneed
more time to consider amendments to the Soviet draft
resolution.



196 General Assembly — Seventeenth Session — First Committee

The motion for closure was rejected by 38 votes to
26, with 27 abstentions.

32, Mr. ATHAR (Pakistan) suggested that the Com=~
mittee might follow the procedure provided for in rule
122 of the rules of procedure.

33. Mr. SOULEYMANE (Mauritania) moved the ad-
journment of the meeting.

The motion was adopted by 61 votes to 10, with 8
abstentions.

34. The CHAIRMAN said that the Soviet representa~-
tive had asked to make a brief statement.

Point of order raised by the USSR representative concerning
agenda item 93

35, Mr, ZORIN (Union of Soviet Socialist Republics)
said that the recent exchange of messagesbetween the
Chairman of the Council of Ministers of the USSR and
the President of the United States had opened up new
prospects for the reduction of international tension and
the maintenance of peace, In his message of 28 October
1962, for example, the Chairman of the Council of
Ministers had expressed satisfaction at the President's
reaction to his statements regarding the possibility of
ending the dangerous situation then obtaining and creat=-
ing conditions favourable to a more reasoned appraisal
of the international situation in general, particularly so
far as concerned the needto avoid any further conflicts
that might lead to a thermo=-nuclear catastrophe.

36. Since the Cuban situation was the most urgent cur-
rent question, since it was essential to complete the
action undertaken to eliminate the causes of the crisis,
and since the ground had now been clearedfor the re=-
sumption of the work of the Conference of the Eighteen=~
Nation Committee on Disarmament, the Soviet delega-
tion proposed that agenda item 93 (Condemnation of
propaganda favouring preventive nuclear war), which
had been proposed by the USSR (A/5232) and trans-
mitted to the Chairman of the First Committee by the
President of the General Assembly on 27 September
(A/C.1/868/Add.1), should not now be discussed by the
First Committee or by the General Assembly, but
should be referred to the Eighteen-Nation Committee.

37. The Soviet Union continued to deplore all such
propaganda, for example, statements calling for re-
venge, for a review of frontiers in Europe or for the
use of force against nations which were struggling for
liberation. It hoped that the Eighteen-Nation Commit=-
tee would do everything possible to ban such manifes-
tations.

38. After a procedural discussion, in which Mr.
BINDZI (Cameroon), Mr., ZORIN (Union of Soviet So-
cialist Republics) and Mr. GEBRE-EGZY (Ethiopia)
took part, the CHAIRMAN suggested that the Commit-
tee should defer any further discussion of the Soviet
proposal until the following meeting.

It was so decided,

The meeting rose at 1.15 p.m.

Litho 1n U.N.

77101~November 1963—2,150



